

***Information support of the discipline “Theory of Law” for students of the first (bachelor’s) level of higher education in the field of knowledge 29 “International Relations” of the speciality 293 “International Law” of the specialization “International Law” of the Faculty of International Law (prepared by Ass. Prof. Kristina Trykhlil)***

*Legal acts*

1. Constitution of Ukraine adopted on 28 June 1996 URL: <https://rm.coe.int/constitution-of-ukraine/168071f58b>
2. European Convention for the Protection of Human Rights and Fundamental Freedoms, as amended by Protocols Nos. 11 and 14, 4 November 1950 URL: [https://www.echr.coe.int/documents/convention\\_eng.pdf](https://www.echr.coe.int/documents/convention_eng.pdf)
3. Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union, 14 December 2007 URL: [https://fra.europa.eu/sites/default/files/charter-of-fundamental-rights-of-the-european-union-2007-c\\_303-01\\_en.pdf](https://fra.europa.eu/sites/default/files/charter-of-fundamental-rights-of-the-european-union-2007-c_303-01_en.pdf)
4. Association Agreement between the European Union and its Member States, of the one part, and Ukraine, of the other part, 29 May 2014 URL: [http://publications.europa.eu/resource/cellar/4589a50c-e6e3-11e3-8cd4-01aa75ed71a1.0006.03/DOC\\_1](http://publications.europa.eu/resource/cellar/4589a50c-e6e3-11e3-8cd4-01aa75ed71a1.0006.03/DOC_1)

*Educational and methodical materials*

1. Syllabus of academic discipline “Theory of Law” for students of the first (bachelor’s) level of higher education in the field of knowledge 29 “International Relations” of the speciality 293 “International Law” of the specialization “International Law” of the Faculty of International Law. Kharkiv: Yaroslav Mudryi NLU, 2024. 20 p.
2. Programme of academic discipline “Theory of Law” for students of the first (bachelor’s) level of higher education in the field of knowledge 29 “International Relations” of the speciality 293 “International Law” of the specialization “International Law” of the Faculty of International Law. Kharkiv: Yaroslav Mudryi NLU, 2024. 37 p.
3. Oxford dictionary of law. A Dictionary of Law. [Text] / ed. by Jonathan Law, Elizabeth A. Martin. 7th Edition. Oxford : Oxford University Press, Market House Books Ltd, 2009. 602 P.
4. Gordillo A. An introduction to law. London : Esperia Publications Ltd, 2003. 156 P.
5. Horvath, Barna. The Bases of Law = A jog alapjai. Budapest : Szent Istvan Tarsulat, 2006. 94 P.
6. Williams, Glanville. Learning the Law. 11th edition. London : Stevens and Sons, 1982. 241 P.
7. Introduction to Law / Eds. Jaap Hage, Antonia Waltermann, Bram Akkermans. Second Edition. Springer International Publishing Switzerland, 2014, 2017. 397 P.

8. Raymond Wacks. *Understanding Jurisprudence: An Introduction to Legal Theory*. Oxford University Press, 2020. 424 P.
9. Barron A., Collins H., Jackson *et al.* *Introduction to Jurisprudence and Legal Theory: Commentary and Materials*. Oxford University Press, 2002. 1194 P.
10. Bix B. *Jurisprudence. Theory and context*, 7th edn. London: Sweet & Maxwell/Thomson Reuters, 2015. 333 P.
11. Tebbit Mark. *Philosophy of Law: an Introduction*. 3d. edition. Taylor & Francis, 2017. 314 P.
12. Perry S. *Method and Principle in Legal Theory*. *Yale Law Journal*. 2002. Vol. 111. Issue 7. P. 1757 – 1813.
13. Holland J. A., Webb J. S. *Learning Legal Rules. A Students' Guide to Legal Method and Reasoning*. Eight Edition. UK: Oxford University Press, 2013. 440 P.
14. William Twining. *General Jurisprudence: Understanding Law from a Global Perspective – Law in Context*. Cambridge University Press, 2009. 544 P.
15. Halstead P. *Key Facts: Jurisprudence*. Taylor & Francis Ltd, 2012. 136 P.
16. Robin West. *Normative Jurisprudence: An Introduction – Cambridge Introductions to Philosophy and Law*. Cambridge University Press, 2011. 220 P.
17. Nigel Simmonds. *Central Issues in Jurisprudence: Justice, Law and Rights*. Sweet & Maxwell Ltd, 2018. 354 P.
18. *International Human Rights Law* / Ed. by D. Moeckli, S. Shah, S. Sivakumaran, D. Harris. Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2010. 716 P.
19. Lopatka A. *Wstęp do prawoznawstwa*. Wydanie trzecie poprawione. Warszawa : Państwowe wydawnictwo naukowe, 1975. 303 S.
20. *Загальна теорія права* / за ред. О. В. Петришина. Харків: Право, 2020. 568 С.
21. *Теорія держави і права : посібник для підготовки до державних іспитів* / за заг. ред. О. В. Петришина. 3-є вид., доп. і змін. Х. : Право, 2014. 208 С.
22. *Теорія держави і права у схемах і таблицях* / за ред. О. В. Петришина. Х. : Юрайт, 2012. 256 С.
23. Рабінович П. М. *Основи теорії та філософії права: навч. посібник*. Львів: Видавництво ЛОБФ «Медицина і право», 2021. 256 с. URL: [https://fpk.in.ua/images/biblioteka/3fmb\\_finan/Rabinovych-theory\\_philosophy\\_prava\\_posibnik\\_2021.pdf](https://fpk.in.ua/images/biblioteka/3fmb_finan/Rabinovych-theory_philosophy_prava_posibnik_2021.pdf)
24. Кельман М. С., Стратонов В. М. *Теорія держави та права: підручник*. Київ: Гельветика, 2020. 724 с.
25. Бержель Ж.-Л. *Общая теория права* / Ж.-Л. Бержель ; пер. с фр. М. : NOTA BENE, 2000. 576 С.

*Literature*

Basic literature

1. Велика українська юридична енциклопедія: у 20-ти томах. Т. 3 : *Загальна теорія права* / редкол.: О. В. Петришин (голова) та ін. Харків: Право, 2017. 952 С.
2. The Legal system of Ukraine: Past, Present, and Future [Text] : in 5 v. / National academy of legal sciences of Ukraine; gen. ed. V. Tatsiy ; ed. and translator W. E. Butler. Kyiv; Kharkiv: Pravo, 2013. V.1 : *Methodological, historical, and theoretical problems of the forming and development of the legal system of Ukraine* / gen.ed. V. Tatsiy ; ed. O. V. Petryshyn [et al.]. 2013. 808 P.
3. Ukrainian legal doctrine [Text] = Правова доктрина України : in 5 Vol. / National academy of Legal Sciences of Ukraine, The Vinogradoff Institute, Pennsylvania State University; ed.: V. Ia. Tatsyi, W. E. Butler ; ed. and translator W. E. Butler. London : Wildy, Simmonds & Hill Publishing. Vol. 1: *Fundamental Theoretical and Historical Jurisprudence* / ed. O. V. Petryshyn. 2015. 792 P.
4. Gadamer H. G. (1960) Truth and method. 2nd rev. ed. London ; New York : Continuum, 2004. 601 P.
5. Luhmann N. Law as a social system. Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2004. 498 P.
6. Lloyd D. The idea of law (1964). Middlesex, England: Penguin Books, 1991. 368 P.
7. Varga C. Time and law. Is it the nature of law to last?. Bruylant : Bruxelles, 1998. 12 P.
8. Fletcher G. P. In Honour of «Ius et Lex». Some Thoughts on Speaking about Law [Text] / George P. Fletcher. Warszawa : «Ius et Lex» Foundation, 2001. 19 P.
9. Трихліб К. О. Гармонізація законодавства України і законодавства ЄС: наближення загальноправової термінології. X. : Право, 2015. 224 С.
10. Rawls John. E Theory of Justice (1971). 2nd Revised edition. Harvard University Press, 1999. 560 P.
11. Puchta G. F. Historical jurisprudence 89 outlines of jurisprudence as the science of right – a juristic encyclopedia. In Jerome Hall (ed.), *Readings in Jurisprudence*. Gaunt. 1938. Pp. 89.
12. Kelsen H. Pure Theory of Law (1934). Translation from the Second (Revised and Enlarged) German Edition by Max Knight. Berkeley: University of California Press, 1967. 356 P. Reprinted 2005 by The Lawbook Exchange, Ltd.
13. Hart H. L. A. Positivism and the Separation of Law and Morals. *Harvard Law Review*. 1958. Vol. 71, No. 4. P. 593 – 629.
14. Fuller Lon L. Positivism and Fidelity to Law: A Reply to Professor Hart. Reviewed work(s). *Harvard Law Review*. 1958. Vol. 71, No. 4. P. 630 – 672.
15. Hart H. L. A. The concept of law (1961). 3rd edn. Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2012. 333 P.

16. Fuller Lon L. *The morality of Law*. New Haven, Connecticut: Yale University Press, 1964. 106 P.
17. Dworkin R. *Taking Rights Seriously*. Cambridge, Massachusetts: Harvard University Press, 1977. 293 P.
18. Dworkin R. *Law's Empire*. Cambridge, Massachusetts London, England: THE BELKNAP PRESS of Harvard University Press, 1986. 470 P.
19. Finnis J. *Natural Law and Natural Rights* (1980). 2nd edn. Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2011. 494 P.
20. Radbruch G. *Five Minutes of Legal Philosophy* (1945). Translated by Bonnie Litschewski Paulson and Stanley L. Paulson. *Oxford Journal of Legal Studies*. 2006. Vol. 26, No. 1. P. 13 – 15 doi:10.1093/ojls/gqi042
21. Radbruch G. *Statutory Lawlessness and Supra-Statutory Law* (1946). Translated by Bonnie Litschewski Paulson and Stanley L. Paulson. *Oxford Journal of Legal Studies*. 2006. Vol. 26, No. 1. P. 1 – 11 doi:10.1093/ojls/gqi041
22. Raz J. *The Authority of Law: Essays on Law and Morality* (1979). Oxford University Press, 2009. 356 P.
23. Holmes O. W. *The Path of the Law* (1897). *The essential Holmes: Selections from the letters, speeches, judicial opinions and other writings of Oliver Wendell Holmes, Jr./ed. and with introduction by Richard A. Posner*. Chicago; London: The University of Chicago press, 1992. P. 160 – 173.
24. Llewellyn K. *Some realism about realism*. *Harvard Law Review*. 1931. No. 44. P. 1233 – 1241.
25. Humphreys S. *Law as discourse*. *History and Anthropology*. Volume 1. Issue 2. 1985. P. 239 – 264, DOI: [10.1080/02757206.1985.9960743](https://doi.org/10.1080/02757206.1985.9960743)
26. Habermas J. *On the Pragmatics of Communication* (Studies in Contemporary German Social Thought). 1st Edition. The MIT Press, 2000. 464 P.
27. Strecker D. *Communicative Rationality*. In A. Allen & E. Mendieta (Eds.), *The Cambridge Habermas Lexicon*. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 2019. P. 56 – 59. doi:10.1017/9781316771303.017
28. Hall J. *Integrative jurisprudence*. *Hasting Law Journal*. 1976. Volume 27. Issue 4. P. 779 – 792. URL: [https://repository.uchastings.edu/hastings\\_law\\_journal/vol27/iss4/1](https://repository.uchastings.edu/hastings_law_journal/vol27/iss4/1)
29. Klatt M. *Integrative Jurisprudence: Legal Scholarship and the Triadic Nature of Law*. *Ratio Juris*. 2021. Volume 33. Issue 4. P. 380 – 398. <https://doi.org/10.1111/raju.12301>
30. Benson B. L. *The Enterprise of Law: justice without the state*. San Francisco ; California : Pasific Research Institute for Public Policy, 1990. 396 P.
31. Holmes O. W. *The Common law* (1881). Lawbook Exchange, Ltd., 2010. 442 P.
32. Cross R., Harris J. W. *Precedent in English Law*. Oxford: Clarendon Press, 1991. 246 P.
33. Varga, Csaba. *Theory of law. Norm, Logic, System, Doctrine & Technique in Legal Processes, with Appendix on European Law*. Budapest : Szent Istvan Tarsulat, 2012. 371 P.

34. Aarnio A., Peczenik A. On values. Universal or Relative? *Ratio Juris*. 1994. No. 4, Vol. 9. P. 321 – 330.
35. Avila H. *Theory of Legal Principles*. Springer Netherlands, 2007. 172 P.
36. Daci J. Legal Principles, Legal Values and Legal Norms: are they the same or different? *Academicus International Scientific Journal*. 2010. Issue 2. P. 109 – 115.
37. Huber P. M. The principle of Proportionality, in: Schroeder W. (ed.). *Strengthening the rule of law in Europe: from a common concept to mechanisms of implementation*. Oxford and Portland, Oregon: Hart Publishing. 2016. P. 98 – 112.
38. Nordén G. *The Structure of Norms and Legal Uncertainty: A Framework for the Functional Analysis of Law as Transformed in Multi-Member Decision Mechanisms*. 2016. Yale Law School Dissertations. 2. 281 P. URL: <https://digitalcommons.law.yale.edu/ylds/2>
39. Kelso R. R. Styles of Constitutional Interpretation and the Four Main Approaches to Constitutional Interpretation in American Legal History. *Valparaiso University Law Review*. 1994. Vol. 29, No. 1. P. 121 – 233. URL: <https://scholar.valpo.edu/vulr/vol29/iss1/2>
40. Barak A. *Purposive Interpretation in Law*. Translated from the Hebrew by Sari Bashi. Princeton and Oxford: Princeton University Press, 2005. 464 P. URL: <https://www.docme.su/doc/1731754/aharon-barak--sari-bashi---purposive-interpretation-in-la...>
41. MacCormick N. *Legal Reasoning and Legal Theory*. Oxford: Clarendon Press; Reprint edition, 1994. 298 P.
42. Alexy R., Adler R., MacCormick N. *A Theory of Legal Argumentation. The Theory of Rational Discourse as Theory of Legal Justification*, Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2009. 352 P.
43. Alexy R. *A Theory of Constitutional Rights*. Oxford University Press, 2002. 506 P.
44. Barak A. *Proportionality. Constitutional Rights and their Limitations*. Cambridge University Press, 2012. 638 P.
45. Akandji-Kombe J.-F. *Positive obligations under the European Convention on Human Rights. A guide to the implementation of the European Convention on Human Rights*. Council of Europe: Human rights handbooks, 2007. 68 P.
46. Dicey A. V. *Introduction to the Study of the Law of the Constitution*. Eight edition. New York: the Macmillan company, 1915. 584 P. URL: [https://files.libertyfund.org/files/1714/0125\\_Bk.pdf](https://files.libertyfund.org/files/1714/0125_Bk.pdf)
47. Tamanaha Brian Z. *On the Rule of Law: History, Politics, Theory*. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 2004. 180 P. doi:10.1017/CBO9780511812378
48. Gowder P. *The rule of law in the real world*. New York: Cambridge University Press, 2016. 271 P.
49. *Report on the Rule of Law*. Adopted by the Venice Commission at its 86th plenary session (Venice, 25 – 26 March 2011) / Council of Europe URL: [https://www.venice.coe.int/webforms/documents/default.aspx?pdffile=CDL-AD\(2011\)003rev-e](https://www.venice.coe.int/webforms/documents/default.aspx?pdffile=CDL-AD(2011)003rev-e)

50. The Rule of law checklist. Adopted by the Venice Commission at its 106th Plenary Session (Venice, 11 – 12 March 2016) / Council of Europe. URL: <https://book.coe.int/en/constitutional-law/7019-pdf-the-rule-of-law-checklist.html>

51. Trykhlіb, K. (2024). “Chapter 6: The implementation of the rule-of-law principle in post-Soviet states: myth or reality”. In *Constitutional Traditions and Constitutional Transitions*. Cheltenham, UK: Edward Elgar Publishing. Retrieved Jan 12, 2025, from <https://doi.org/10.4337/9781035345410.00014>

52. TRYKHLIB, Kristina. Constitutional Order and the Rule of Law in a Time of War in Ukraine. *International and Comparative Law Review*, 2024, vol. 24, no. 1, pp. 241 – 255. DOI: <https://doi.org/10.2478/iclr-2024-0015>

#### Additional literature

1. Великий енциклопедичний юридичний словник [Текст] / за ред. Ю. С. Шемшученка. К. : Юрид. думка, 2007. 992 С.

2. The Legal system of Ukraine: Past, Present, and Future [Text] : in 5 v. / National academy of legal sciences of Ukraine; gen. ed. V. Tatsiy ; ed. and translator W. E. Butler. Kyiv; Kharkiv : Pravo, 2013. V.2 : *Constitutional Foundations of the legal system of Ukraine and Problems of improvement* / gen.ed. Iu. P. Bytiak. 535 P.

3. Berman Harold J. LAW AND REVOLUTION: THE FORMATION OF THE WESTERN LEGAL TRADITION. Cambridge, Mass. & London, England: Harvard University Press, 1983. 657 P.

4. Аннерс Е. История европейского права / пер. со швед. М. А. Исаева. Ин-тут Европы РАН. М.: Наука, 1994. 397 С.

5. Pound R. Law and morals. Chapel Hill: The Univ. of North Carolina Press; London: Humphrey Milford, Oxford Univ. Press, 1926. 144 P.

6. Sandel Michael J. Justice: what’s the right thing to do? New York: Farrar, Straus and Giroux, 2009. 308 P.

7. Wintgens L. From Law without a Science to Legal Science without the Legislator: The German Historical School and the Foundation of Law. *Statute Law Review*. 2010. Volume 31. P. 85 – 106. DOI:[10.1093/slr/hmq008](https://doi.org/10.1093/slr/hmq008)

8. Radbruch G. Law’s Image of the Human. *Oxford Journal of Legal Studies*. 2020. Volume 40, Issue 4. P 667 – 681 <https://doi.org/10.1093/ojls/gqaa026>

9. Petrażycki L. Law and Morality (1955). Routledge, 2011. 396 P.

10. Pound R. Social control through law. New Haven: Yale Univ. Press; Oxford Univ. Press, 1942. 138 P.

11. Hart H. L. A. Law, Liberty, And Morality. Stanford University Press, 1963. 96 P.

12. Austin John, Hart H. L. A. The Province of Jurisprudence Determined and The Uses of the Study of Jurisprudence. Hackett Publishing Co, Inc, 1998. 432 P.

13. Gavison R. Essays in Jurisprudence and Philosophy. By H. L. A. Hart. [Oxford University Press, 1983, 391 pp.]. *Israel Law Review*. 1984. Volume 19. Issue 2, P. 287 – 290. doi:10.1017/S0021223700008359

14. Raz J. The morality of freedom. Oxford: Clarendon Press, 1986. 427 P.

15. Alexy R. *The Argument From Injustice: A Reply to Legal Positivism*. Oxford University Press UK, 2002. 142 P. URL: <http://arquimedes.adv.br/livros100/The%20Argument%20from%20Injustice%20-%20A%20Reply%20to%20Legal%20Positivism%20-Robert%20Alexy.pdf>
16. Алекси Р. Понятие и действительность права (ответ юридическому позитивизму) / пер. с нем. А. Н. Лаптева, Ф. Кальшойера. М.: Инфотропик Медиа, 2011. 192 С.
17. Robert Alexy. *Law's Ideal Dimension*. Oxford University Press, 2021. 352 P.
18. Hoeske M. V. *Law as Communication*. Oxford: Hart Publishing. Series: European Academy of Legal Theory, 2002. 240 P.
19. Svogun T. V. Integrative Jurisprudence: Law and Law Enforcement's Three Dimensions. In: *The Jurisprudence of Police*. Palgrave Macmillan, New York, 2013. P. 135 – 189. [https://doi.org/10.1057/9781137342638\\_8](https://doi.org/10.1057/9781137342638_8)
20. Hunter H. O. *The Integrative Jurisprudence Of Harold J. Berman*. Routledge, 2021. 168 P.
21. Шевчук С. В. Судова правотворчість : світовий досвід і перспективи в Україні. Київ : Реферат, 2007. 640 С.
22. Пархоменко Н. М. Джерела права: проблеми теорії та методології. К. : Юрид. думка, 2008. 326 С.
23. Щокін Ю. В. Міжнародно-правовий звичай: проблеми теорії і практики. Харків : Право, 2012. 456 С.
24. Shapiro Scott J. *Legality*. Harvard University Press, 2011. 472 P.
25. Hayek F. A. *Law, Legislation and Liberty: A new statement of the liberal principles of justice and political economy (1st ed.)*. London: Routledge, 2012. 584 P. <https://doi.org/10.4324/9780203103814>
26. Möller K. Proportionality: Challenging the critics. *International Journal of Constitutional Law*. 2012. Vol. 10. Issue 3. P. 709 – 731.
27. Popelier P., Van De Heyning C. Procedural rationality: giving teeth to the proportionality analysis. *European Constitutional Law Review*. 2013. Vol. 9, Issue 2. P. 230 – 262, DOI: <https://doi.org/10.1017/S1574019612001137>
28. Duncan R. F. Justice Scalia And The Rule of Law: Originalism Vs. The Living Constitution. College of Law, Faculty Publications. 2016. *Regent University Law Review*, 29 (1), P. 9 – 34. URL: <https://digitalcommons.unl.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?referer=https://www.google.com/&httpsredir=1&article=1200&context=lawfacpub>
29. TRYKHLIB, Kristina. Law-Making Activity in the Case Law of the Constitutional Court of Ukraine. *International and Comparative Law Review*. 2019. Vol. 19, No. 2. P. 27 – 75. DOI: <https://doi.org/10.2478/iclr-2019-0014>
30. Тодика Ю. Н. Толкование Конституции и законов Украины: Теория и практика. Х.: Факт, 2003. 328 С.
31. James Boyle. *Critical Legal Studies*. New York: New York University Press, 1992. 643 P.
32. Buchland M. *Document Theory: An Introduction*. Selected Papers from the Conference and School on Records, Archives and Memory Studies. University

of Zadar, Croatia. Zadar: University of Zadar. 2015. P. 223 – 237. *UC Berkeley*  
URL: <https://people.ischool.berkeley.edu/~buckland/zadardotheory.pdf>

33. Fennelly N. Legal Interpretation at the European Court of Justice. *Fordham International Law Journal*. 1996. Vol. 20. Issue 3. Article 4. P. 656 – 679.  
URL: <https://ir.lawnet.fordham.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1526&context=ilj>

34. Habermas J. The concept of human dignity and the realistic utopia of human rights. *Metaphilosophy*. 2010. Vol. 41, No. 4. P. 464 – 480. URL: [www.jstor.org/stable/24439631](http://www.jstor.org/stable/24439631).

35. *International Human Rights Law* / Ed. by D. Moeckli, S. Shah, S. Sivakumaran, D. Harris. Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2010. 720 P.

36. Bayefsky A. F. *How to complain to the UN Human Rights Treaty System*. NY: Transnational Publishers, 2002. 397 P.

37. Starmer K. *European Human Rights Law*. London: Legal Action Group, 1999. 960 P.

38. Harris D., O'Boyle M. & Warbrick: *Law of the European Convention on Human Rights*. Forth Edition. Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2018. 1056 P.

39. Huscroft G. Proportionality and the Relevance of Interpretation, in: Huscroft G., Miller B. W., Webber G. (eds.). *Proportionality and the rule of law: Rights, Justification, Reasoning*. New York: Cambridge University Press, 2014. P. 186 – 202.

40. Kristina Trykhlіb. THE PRINCIPLE OF PROPORTIONALITY IN THE JURISPRUDENCE OF THE EUROPEAN COURT OF HUMAN RIGHTS / EU AND COMPARATIVE LAW ISSUES AND CHALLENGES SERIES (ECLIC 4). – ISSUE 4, Josip Juraj Strossmayer University of Osijek, Faculty of Law Osijek, Croatia. Editor in Chief: D. Duić, T. Petrašević. International Scientific Conference “EU 2020 – lessons from the past and solutions for the future“ in Osijek (Croatia), 10 – 11 September 2020, Conference book of proceedings. – 1360 p. – P. 128 – 154. DOI: <https://doi.org/10.25234/eclіc/11899>

41. Kristina Trykhlіb. Zasada niedyskryminacji w prawie europejskim (Принцип недискримінації в європейському праві). *Przegląd Prawa Konstytucyjnego*. 2020 / Nr 2 (54). С. 271 – 296. DOI 10.15804/ppk.2020.02.15 ISSN 2082-1212. URL: <https://bibliotekanauki.pl/articles/524461.pdf>

42. Трихліб К. О. Обсяг меж вільного розсуду держави у практиці Європейського суду з прав людини. *Проблеми законності*. 2021. Вип. 154. С. 65 – 78. doi: <https://doi.org/10.21564/2414-990X.154.239125> URL: <https://www.academia.edu/download/90815817/482733203.pdf>

43. Trykhlіb K., Lemak V. Autonomous Interpretation by the European Court of Human Rights and Margin of Appreciation. *International and Comparative Law Review*. 2022. Vol. 22, Iss. 1. P. 135 – 148. DOI: 10.2478/iclr-2022-0009 URL: <https://sciendo.com/pdf/10.2478/iclr-2022-0009>

44. Trykhlіb K. Analysis of autonomous concepts in the practice of the European Court of Human Rights. *Comparative Law Review*. 2022. Vol. 28. P. 459 – 484. DOI: 10.12775/CLR.2022.016. URL: <https://apcz.umk.pl/CLR/article/view/37334/34013> 39

45. Козюбра М. І. Принципи права: методологічні підходи до розуміння природи та класифікації в умовах сучасних глобалізаційних трансформацій. *Право України*. 2017. № 11. С. 142 – 164.

46. Шевчук С. В. Концепція позитивних обов'язків держави у практиці Європейського суду з прав людини. *Право України*. 2010. № 2. С. 55 – 64.

47. Oberleitner G. *Human Rights in Armed Conflict: Law, Practice, Policy*. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 2015. 431 P.

48. Spencer Zifcak. *Globalization and the Rule of Law (Challenges of Globalization)*. New York: Routledge, 2005. 236 P.

49. Krygier M. Four Puzzles about the Rule of Law: Why, What, Where? And Who Cares?, in James E. Fleming (ed.), *Getting to the Rule of Law*. New York and London: New York University Press, 2011. P. 64 – 107. URL: [https://codolc.com/books/Getting\\_to\\_the\\_Rule\\_of\\_Law.pdf](https://codolc.com/books/Getting_to_the_Rule_of_Law.pdf)

50. Cheesman N. Law and order as asymmetrical opposite to the rule of law. *Hague Journal on the Rule of Law*. 2014. Volume 6, Issue 1. P. 96 – 114. DOI: <https://doi.org/10.1017/S1876404514001031>

51. Головатий С. Верховенство права : монографія : у 3 кн. К. : Фенікс, 2006.

52. Рабінович П. Верховенство права в інтерпретації Страсбурзького Суду та Конституційного Суду України. *Вісн. Конституц. Суду України*. 2006. № 1. С. 37 – 46.

53. Петришин О. Верховенство права в системі правового регулювання суспільних відносин // *Право України*. 2010. № 3. – С. 24 – 35.

54. David R. *Major Legal Systems in the World Today: An Introduction to the Comparative Study of Law*. Trans. by John E. C. Brierley. London: Stevens, 1968. 528 P.

55. Domingo R. *The New Global Law*. New York: Cambridge University Press, 2011. 240 P.

#### *Internet resources*

<http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws> – Official web portal of the Parliament of Ukraine (Legislation of Ukraine)

<https://www.kmu.gov.ua/> – Web portal of the executive authorities of Ukraine

<http://www.ccu.gov.ua/> – Official website of the Constitutional Court of Ukraine

[https://supreme.court.gov.ua/supreme/gromadyanam/perelik\\_sprav/](https://supreme.court.gov.ua/supreme/gromadyanam/perelik_sprav/) – Official website portal of the Supreme Court of Ukraine

<http://www.aprnu.kharkiv.org/> – Official website of the National Academy of Legal Sciences of Ukraine

<http://www.twirpx.com/files/law/tgp/> – Site for searching and downloading scientific legal literature

<http://nbuv.gov.ua/> – Official page of the Vernadsky National Library of Ukraine

<https://dspace.nlu.edu.ua/> – Electronic archive – Repository of the Yaroslav Mudryi National Law University

<https://ukraine.un.org/uk> – Official UN website in Ukraine

<https://www.ombudsman.gov.ua/> – Official page of the Ukrainian Parliament Commissioner for Human Rights (Ombudsman)

<http://europa.eu> – Official site of the European Union

<http://www.euractiv.com> – Media portal of the European Union

<http://www.curia.europa.eu> – Official website of the Court of Justice of the European Union (CJEU)

<http://www.ombudsman.europa.eu/start.faces> – Official page of the European Ombudsman

<http://eur-lex.europa.eu/homepage.html> – Search system of the EU legal acts

<https://www.coe.int/uk/web/kyiv/home/> – Official page of the Council of Europe Office in Ukraine

<https://reyestr.court.gov.ua/> – Unified State Register of Court Decisions of Ukraine

<https://www.echr.coe.int/Pages/home.aspx?p=applicants/ukr&c> – Official site of the European Court of Human Rights

[https://hudoc.echr.coe.int/ukr#{%22documentcollectionid2%22:\[%22GRANDCHAMBER%22,%22CHAMBER%22\]}](https://hudoc.echr.coe.int/ukr#{%22documentcollectionid2%22:[%22GRANDCHAMBER%22,%22CHAMBER%22]}) – Official site of the case law (judicial practice) of the European Court of Human Rights

<https://minjust.gov.ua/acquis-communautaire> – Acts of the EU's acquis translated into Ukrainian

<https://pulse.eu-ua.org> – Progress in implementing the Association Agreement

<https://www.loc.gov/> – Library of Congress (USA)

### *SEEMC*

Standardized electronic educational and methodical complex of the Department of Theory and Philosophy of Law. URL:

[http://library.nlu.edu.ua/index.php?option=com\\_k2&view=itemlist&task=category&id=97:kafedra-teorii-i-filosofii-prava&Itemid=151](http://library.nlu.edu.ua/index.php?option=com_k2&view=itemlist&task=category&id=97:kafedra-teorii-i-filosofii-prava&Itemid=151)

### *Material and technical support of the academic discipline*

Open access to online resources of Oxford University Press, to the Information and Legal Systems LIGA:ZAKON (GRAND System and VERDICTUM Judicial Analysis System).

Access is possible in the hall of legal information of the Educational and Library Complex (Hryhoriia Skovorody street, 84-A, 3rd floor).